RESOLUTION 2024-73

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING AN AMENDED CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY FOR THE CITY OF FRANKLIN.

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin services approximately 30,000 residential and commercial water, sewer, stormwater, and solid waste customers within the City; and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin desires to provide consistent and exceptional customer service to these utility customers; and

WHEREAS, on November 22, 2022 the Board of Mayor and Alderman adopted Resolution No. 2022-67, a resolution adopting a customer service policy; and

WHEREAS, on October 10, 2023 the Board of Mayor and Alderman adopted Resolution No. 2023-60, a resolution adopting an amended customer service policy; and

WHEREAS, on June 25, 2024 the Board of Mayor and Aldermen adopted Ordinance 2024-24 creating the Billing and Licensing Department; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Mayor and Aldermen believes it is in the best interest of the City of Franklin for the customer service policy to be amended to reflect the new department and position titles of the Billing and Licensing Department in order to provide clarification to the City's utility customers.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, TENNESSEE, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The customer service policy for the City of Franklin adopted by Resolution No. 2023-60, is hereby repealed in its entirety. In place thereof, the customer service policy, which is attached as Exhibit A, is now hereby adopted for the City of Franklin.

Section 2. Changes or revisions to the policy hereby adopted shall be made only by resolution of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the City of Franklin.

Section 3. The effective date of the policy hereby adopted shall be immediate upon passage and adoption of the resolution, the public welfare and the welfare of the City requiring it.

IT IS SO RESOLVED AND DONE on this 24th day of September, 202.4

ATTEST:

Angie Skarp

City Recorder

CITY OF FRANKLIN, TENNESSEE:

Dr. Ken Moore

Mayor

Approved as to Form:

By:

J. Blake Harper Staff Attorney

Customer Service Policy

Customer Service Policy

Table of Contents

1.	General Policy	2
2.	Application for Service	
3.	Application and Service Fees	2
4.	Eligible Applicants and Occupants	
5.	Change in Customer of Record	4
6.	Services Billed	4
7.	Estimated Bills	5
8.	Rates	5
9.	Payment Methods	5
10.	Voluntary Disconnection of Service	6
11.	Disconnection of Service Due to Non-Payment	6
12.	Reconnection of Service Disconnected for Non-Payment	7
13.	Payment Arrangements	7
14.	Disputed Bills	8
	Meter Access	
16.	Payment Locations	9
17.	New Connection	9
18.	Temporary Fire Hydrant Meters	9
19.	Customer Programs	10
20.	Adjustments	
21.	Procedures	.12

Customer Service Policy

1. General Policy

This policy applies to utility customer service within The City of Franklin.

2. Application for Service

Residential

Residential customers shall be required to make application for new service or changes to existing service. A copy of a photo ID is required for identification verification. A requirement of three (3) business days prior notice to connect service applies. Customers who are leasing must provide a copy of the lease signed by the lessor listing all tenants before service will be provided. The application for service must be completed and signed by the exact same name or names on the lease. If the information does not match, the application will not be accepted. In the case that no lease has been generated, the lessor must provide a signed lease verification form (available in Customer Service). In any case that the customer is unable to sign the required documents, whether physically or geographically, their representative must present a notarized Power of Attorney to complete the transaction. Application and service charges established by City ordinance may be charged to the customer's first utility bill provided that the customer does not have a delinquent account with the City of Franklin.

Non-Residential

Commercial and Industrial customers must make application for new utility service or changes to existing service. A requirement of three (3) business days prior notice to connect service applies. Applicants must provide satisfactory documentation before utility service is provided. The documentation must include a signature of the owner or an officer of the business. Application and service charges established by City ordinance may be charged to the customer's first utility bill provided that the customer does not have a delinquent account with the City of Franklin.

3. Application and Service Fees

An application fee will be applied to any new, re-established, or additional account. Customers who provide an incorrect service address when applying for service shall be required to pay an additional service charge if the City's service employee is required to make more than one trip to establish service.

Customer Service Policy

A service reconnection charge must be paid at the time of reconnection after disconnection due to non-payment of a bill in accordance with non-payment provisions.

Fee amounts are set by City ordinance.

4. Eligible Applicants and Occupants

The City of Franklin will provide service to applicants who are of majority age, have no prior outstanding delinquency with the City, and who provide satisfactory proof of identity. Each customer will be required to execute a utility service agreement.

When a customer's utility service has been terminated for nonpayment, the utility service will not be restored to the consumer until his or her delinquent account is satisfied in accordance with City policy.

Both parties in a marriage are responsible for payment of a utility bill at the residence they share. However, one spouse is not held liable for a past debt at a location inhabited by the other spouse prior to the marriage and if requested, service may be provided in the name of the new spouse. Collection of the former debt should commence immediately.

Occupants are not responsible for utility accounts unless they are parties to a residential utility contract. It is the City's practice to require all responsible occupants to execute a utility contract (application for service). In the event a customer executes a new utility contract, the City may add any unpaid amounts to the customer's bill even if the services were incurred at a different address and the City discovers the existence of an unpaid account later.

In case of the death of a customer, service will be removed from the deceased's name as quickly as possible. Anyone requesting a change to a deceased customers' account must provide a death certificate, Letter of Testamentary, or other court document related to the deceased. During probate, the account will be billed to the personal representative of the estate of the customer. Following disposition of the estate, the service will be billed in the name of the occupant of the premises. In the case of an immediate family member, the change of name will be arranged without charge. Standard identification questions will be asked.

Customer Service Policy

5. Change in Customer of Record

Changes in the customer of record for existing residential accounts may be granted under the following conditions:

- a. The change in customer name or status is because of marriage, divorce, legal name change, or death. Name change requests should be made in writing by the account holder. No fee applies.
- b. If existing account is under more than one name, the person who will remain at the residence shall complete a new customer application. No fee applies.
- c. The customer has satisfactory identification or documentation in the new name or status. A copy of a court order for name change is acceptable.

Changes in the customer of record for existing Commercial and Industrial accounts may be granted under the following conditions:

- a. The customer requests the name change in writing. The request should be accompanied by proper documentation verifying that there is no change in ownership. The documentation must include the signature of the owner or office of the business.
- b. If the customer's Federal ID number changes, the customer shall complete a new customer application.

6. Services Billed

Bills shall be rendered monthly, at intervals between 28 and 34 days, unless unusual circumstances preclude that action. The City will mail or email all utility bills approximately 15 days before the net due date. The statement will reflect the net amount due and the gross amount due if paid after the due date. Bills shall be sent to the address or email address designated by the customer.

The customer is responsible for all utility consumption at his/her premise. If it is found that the service has not been billed properly, the City will back bill for utilities consumed or refund over-charges, up to the limitations defined in Tennessee Code Annotated §§ 28-3-301–303.

Customer Service Policy

7. Estimated Bills

If representatives of the City are unable to obtain access to the customer's meter during regular working hours, if a meter fails to register, or if for any other reason actual consumption cannot be determined, the City will render an estimated bill based on past usage in accordance with industry accepted estimation practices.

8. Rates

The City reserves the right to determine the correct rate classification for each account. If a customer can establish that they are being billed at the wrong rate, their rate classification will be corrected at the sole discretion of the City. A refund will be made for the applicable period, up to a maximum allowed by law, (36 months) for the amount the customer was overbilled unless the incorrect rate was based on information furnished by the customer. If it is found that a customer has been under billed, the City may collect for all such prior service, up to a maximum allowed by law.

9. Payment Methods

Cash, business or personal checks, money orders, or credit/debit cards may be accepted for payment of any bills owed to the City and any amount over the actual amount of the bill will be credited to the customer's account. Checks returned by the bank shall be immediately charged back to the customer's account, and a returned check charge will be assessed. Any account with three (3) returned checks within a twelve (12)month period will be required to make future payments, for a twelve (12) month period, in the form of cash, a cashier's check, money order, or credit/debit card.

Bankrupt Accounts

Upon receipt of notice of bankruptcy, the customer's account(s) is/are terminated, and a new account is established for future billing. Once notification of dismissal of the bankruptcy is received, funds are collectible. In the case of discharge, funds are not collectible.

Delinquent Utility Accounts

Customer Service Policy

The City will mail all utility bills approximately fifteen (15) days before the net due date. The late charges will be assessed on any account which remains unpaid after the net payment date shown on the bills. The late charge rate will be set by City ordinance.

If the bill remains unpaid after collection attempts have been made, the account may be referred to a collection agency.

10. Voluntary Disconnection of Service

Customers who wish to discontinue service may do so in person at the Customer Service Department, via fax, e-mail or by downloading the termination request form from the City of Franklin's website. Requests for termination of service shall be given in writing three (3) business days in advance. No service disconnection will be completed on Fridays to prevent loss of water usage for a weekend.

The City shall not be liable for damages resulting from discontinuing service at any time after the delinquent date.

If a final bill remains unpaid after sixty (60) days past the due date, and the customer has an active service account with the City, the final bill balance shall be transferred to the active account.

11. Disconnection of Service Due to Non-Payment

Failure to receive a bill does not relinquish the customer's responsibility for timely payment of the bill. Accounts that become thirty (30) days delinquent will have service disconnected for non-payment. Any request to make payment arrangements to prevent disconnection must be made prior to the date of the cutoff. Payment arrangements shall be directed to the Billing and Licensing Manager, Billing and Licensing Director, or Finance Director.

The City shall not be liable for any loss or damage resulting from cutoff.

If an account remains unpaid after cutoff, the meter will be locked during the next cutoff cycle and the City of Franklin Building and Neighborhood Services Department will be notified that the residence has no water, and the customer could be subject to a violation.

Page 6 of 12 Updated: July 18, 2024

Customer Service Policy

In such cases where payment has not been received on an account that has been cutoff for non-payment, and continues to be delinquent for three consecutive months, every possible attempt to reach the customer is made by customer service. If these attempts are unsuccessful and the customer cannot be contacted by our department, then a forced termination will occur. Once an account is terminated, the customer will be required to make payment in full, complete a new application, and pay the application fee before service would be restored to the property.

Disconnections for non-payment shall not be initiated when daytime temperatures fall below thirty-two (32) degrees Fahrenheit. At any time that temperatures indicate danger of water lines freezing due to below freezing temperatures, the decision to cutoff for non-payment will be that of the Director of Water & Wastewater department.

12. Reconnection of Service Disconnected for Non-Payment

Service will be restored upon receipt of the full amount due for which the service was disconnected. Payment must be made to City of Franklin in the form of cash, cashier's check, money order, business or personal check, or credit/debit card.

A service reconnection charge shall apply to any account that was disconnected for non-payment, unless the customer shows a validated receipt showing that the bill had been paid on a day prior to the date of disconnection.

13. Payment Arrangements

Payment in full is expected by the date due. However, in unusual cases, payment arrangements are available to customers who have incurred a large bill and are having difficulty meeting their financial obligations. In any situation, the customer requesting assistance must be the same as the utility account holder. A down payment is required and the customer must sign a promissory note to pay the remainder in monthly payments along with their regular current bill for each month. If the customer fails to meet this obligation, the account will be subject to disconnection for non-payment and the customer shall not be allowed to make payment arrangements for a full calendar year.

Payment of all overdue amounts or satisfactory payment arrangements must be made before service will be provided at a change of address for the delinquent customer.

All payment arrangements must be made in writing and have supervisor approval.

Page 7 of 12

Customer Service Policy

- a. Payment arrangements for three (3) months must be approved by the Billing and Licensing Manager or
- b. Payment arrangements for six (6) months must be approved by the Billing and Licensing Director.
- c. Payment arrangements for twelve (12) months must be approved by an Assistant City Administrator or the City Administrator.

14. Disputed Bills

If a customer disputes a bill and alleges erroneous meter reading, the Customer Service Representative shall investigate the accuracy of the bill by performing an analysis of past usage and possible changes in consumption patterns; the possibility of a leak, faulty meter reading, or customer equipment failure. If no error in billing is discovered, the customer shall pay the balance.

If, after initial investigation, a customer still wishes to dispute their charges, they shall be required to present the dispute in writing for review by the Water and Wastewater Department.

The disputed amount will be noted on the billing records and the customer is only required to pay the undisputed amount until the issue is resolved. A dispute shall not preclude further billing activities or obligation to pay subsequent bills.

If a customer still disputes a bill after review by the Water and Wastewater Management Department, a request can be made in writing for further review by the City Administrator or an Assistant City Administrator.

If the customer is not satisfied with the outcome of this review, an appeal may be made in writing to the Board of Mayor & Aldermen (BOMA). The decision of the BOMA will be final.

15. Meter Access

City of Franklin service employees and meter readers shall have free access to the customer's premises at all times for the purpose of reading meters and testing, repairing, removing, or exchanging any or all equipment belonging to the City of Franklin. It is the

Customer Service Policy

responsibility of the customer to ensure free access. A service charge established by City ordinance will be added to the customer's bill if, due inaccessibility, a second trip is required to read or test a meter. If accessibility problems persist, utility service may be interrupted until accessibility is granted. Any additional costs to restore service after interruption or to maintain proper access will be at the customer's expense. Once access is obtained, the customer will be responsible for all water usage.

16. Payment Locations

Payments may be made at the Billing and Licensing Department inside Franklin City Hall. For the convenience of the customers, a night depository has been provided for the payment of bills when the office is closed, and any payments made therein will be accepted for the customer's account and posted the next working day. Any customer using the depository does so at his or her own risk and must accept the City's accounting for the amount received by the City.

17. New Connection

Customers requesting water and/or sewer service at new construction must complete an application with the Building and Neighborhood Services ("BNS") department.

18. Temporary Fire Hydrant Meters

In cases where water is needed on a temporary basis and a fire hydrant is nearby, temporary fire hydrant meters will be available for a deposit, a non-refundable setup fee, and an application fee set by City ordinance. The total fee shall be paid by certified check or money order. Water use will be billed at the inside commercial rate. After the meter is removed per request of customer, a request for the deposit refund shall be submitted in writing to the Accounts Payable division in the Finance Department by the Customer Service Supervisor. If the meter is damaged, the cost of the damaged meter will be deducted from the deposit. Temporary fire hydrant meters will be assigned to a designated fire hydrant. Removal of the fire hydrant to any other location will require approval by the Water Management Department.

Customer Service Policy

19. Customer Programs

Critical Care Program

Upon receipt of documentation from a licensed physician that a customer relies upon an uninterrupted water supply for medical purposes the customer's account will be notated and special efforts will be taken to maintain and/or restore utility service. Nothing in this section shall be construed to mean that customers are exempt from timely payment of their bill or that service may not be disconnected for failure to pay.

Bank Draft Program

Payment by automatic bank draft is offered as a convenience to customers. Customers desiring to have their utility bill payments electronically debited from their bank accounts on the net due date are required to complete a bank draft form and provide a copy of a voided check. Any payment refused by the financial institution will be assessed a return check charge unless the return was due to bank error.

Tax Relief

State law provides property tax relief to certain elderly or disabled low-income homeowners and certain disabled veterans.

City of Franklin sanitation customers who qualify for property tax relief shall have their monthly sanitation service charge waived for as long as they remain on the program. The property tax relief program is administered by the Williamson County Trustee's office and their records will determine who receives this waiver.

Sales Tax Exemption

A current State of Tennessee sales tax exemption certificate must be on file with the Billing and Licensing Department to qualify for waiver of sales tax on water.

20. Adjustments

All adjustments must have supervisor approval:

- a. Adjustments up to \$999.00 must be approved by the Billing and Licensing Manager.
- b. Adjustments between \$999.00 and \$2,499.00 must be approved by the Billing and Licensing Director.

Page 10 of 12

Customer Service Policy

c. Adjustments \$2,500.00 or more must be approved by an Assistant City Administrator or the City Administrator.

Leak Adjustments

Customers are responsible for maintaining their plumbing system. The customer shall be responsible for all water that passes through a water meter and corresponding sewer charges. If the City of Franklin detects unusually high consumption, the City will attempt to notify the customer. Lack of notification will not release a customer from payment obligations, nor extend the due date. The customer is responsible for maintenance of their plumbing and failure to make timely repairs may disqualify a customer for a leak adjustment.

No leak adjustments will be allowed for a property until a certificate of occupancy has been issued.

Each customer generally shall be allowed no more than one (1) billing adjustment during a three hundred sixty-five (365) day period for leaks on the customers' premises. On occasion two (2) consecutive months may be adjusted if the leak occurs over a two (2) month period. Adjustments can only be calculated on bills issued within ninety (90) days. Should a customer request a leak adjustment, the customer must provide proof of repair. A receipt of purchase of a repair part, signed plumber's affidavit, or copy of receipt from plumber indicating repairs completed will be required.

Calculating Adjustment

The amount of adjustment will be based upon the average bill over the previous twelve (12) months. If twelve (12) months' usage is not available, the amount of adjustment will be based on city-wide average consumption. The customer's average usage is first deducted from the high bill. The new balance is then divided by two (2), and the quotient added back to the average usage, resulting in one half of the high usage becoming the responsibility the customer and one half being absorbed by the City.

Pool Adjustments

Customers are allowed one pool fill adjustment in a three hundred sixty-five (365)day period. A completed pool fill affidavit must be submitted detailing the pool size, date of fill, and total gallons used. Pool fill adjustments are calculated on bills issued ninety (90) days prior for sewer only. Customers are responsible for all the water used to fill the pool.

Page 11 of 12

Customer Service Policy

MVUD Adjustments

The City of Franklin provides sewer and trash service to many Mallory Valley Utility District ("MVUD") water customers. If MVUD notifies the City of Franklin that a leak adjustment has been issued to a mutual customer, the City will adjust the customer's sewer charges according to the City's leak adjustment policy.

HB&TS Adjustments

The City of Franklin provides sewer and trash service to many HB&TS water customers. If HB&TS notifies the City of Franklin that a leak adjustment has been issued to a mutual customer, the City will adjust the customer's sewer charges according to it's the City's leak adjustment policy.

Milcrofton Adjustments

The City of Franklin provides sewer and trash service to many Milcrofton Utility District water customers. If a Milcrofton customer experiences a water leak, they may apply to the City of Franklin for a sewer adjustment following the City's leak adjustment policy.

21. Procedures

The Billing and Licensing Department will implement procedures that are in accordance with this policy.



City of Franklin Billing and Licensing Department

109 3rd Ave South | Franklin, TN 37064 | Phone (615) 794-4572 | Fax (615) 550-1954

COF Contract No. 0000-0000 PROMISSORY AGREEMENT TO PAY MONTHLY INSTALLMENTS

I, <u>Jane Doe</u> ("Customer"), agree to pay the City of Franklin, Tennessee (the "City"), the total amount I owe of <u>Zero and 00/100 Dollars (\$00.00</u>) for my utility service account (<u>Account Number 000-00000-00</u>) located at <u>123 Be Kind Way, Franklin, Tennessee 37064</u>. This payment will be made in <u>three</u> (<u>3</u>) monthly installments of <u>Zero and 00/100 Dollars (\$00.00</u>). Payment shall be made in the above amount on or before the <u>30th day of the month</u>, commencing <u>02/15/2021</u> and ending <u>04/15/2021</u>.

I understand that penalty will accrue in accordance with City policy.

I understand that if this payment is not made in addition to my regular utility bill payment, my utility service is subject to disconnection in accordance with City policy.

I understand that if I fail to meet this obligation, I will not be permitted to make new or alternative payment arrangements for a full calendar year from the date of the execution of this Agreement.

CUSTOMER:	
Printed Name	
Address	Phone Number
Signature	Date
CITY OF FRANKLIN, TN	
Billing and Licensing Manager (up to 3 months)	Date
Billing and Licensing Director (up to 6 months)	Date
City Administrator (over 6 months)	 Date